
From:  
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 11:24 AM
To: EDWARDS, Caroline
Subject: Funding for guideline development. [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Dear Caroline,

asked me to pass on the attached revised proposal for the ADHD work.
Please feel free to get in touch if you have any questions or concerns.
Kind regards,

---

Adviser
Office of the Hon Greg Hunt MP
Minister for Health | Federal Member for Flinders

 Parliament House, Canberra, ACT, 2600
@health.gov.au
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o promoting and supporting best practice.
· Inquiries, investigations, and provision of impartial, well-informed information and advice to the

Australian Government on matters affecting public health.
An update of clinical/professional guidelines should meet the eligibility requirements of the HPAB Programme,
namely preparation of relevant content and materials for dissemination; and promoting and supporting best
practice.
Obviously we don’t have a lot of time to get new grant agreements in place this financial year, but you already
know that.
Happy to discuss.
T
Tania Rishniw
First Assistant Secretary
Portfolio Strategies Division
Australian Government Department of Health
T: 02 6289 3944  E: tania.rishniw@health.gov.au
Location: Level 10.s.542 Sirius Building
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Support for People Impacted by Attention Deficit 

Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) Program 

Guidelines 

 

Commonwealth policy 
entity: 

Department of Health  

Enquiries: If you have any questions, please Grant.ATM@health.gov.au 
 

Date guidelines released: September 2018 

Type of Grant Opportunity One off ad-hoc process 
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3 

February 2018 

Introduction 

1. Grant opportunity overview and objectives 

The Support for People Impacted by Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder Program (the 

Program) will run over three years, from 2018-19 to 2020-21.  

ADHD is a childhood-onset condition and includes symptoms of hyperactivity, impulsivity and 

inattention. These symptoms are chronic and in approximately 30-60 per cent of cases, 

persist into adulthood. ADHD has a high burden of illness. It is associated with lowered 

academic functioning, increased risk for drug abuse and can have devastating 

consequences for family and peer relations. Economically, it is associated with increased 

costs, for example, treatment and educational support in school-aged children, as well as 

economic loss due to disability, substance abuse, criminality and increased rates of 

unemployment. 

To address these issues, the Department will provide funding of $1.5 million over three years 

to the Australian Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder Professionals Association 

(AADHDPA) to deliver the Support for People Impacted by ADHD Program (the Program).  

AADHDPA, a leading professional body for ADHD in Australia, brings together an 

interdisciplinary team of health professionals, including, but not limited to academics 

psychiatrists, speech therapists and specialists, to reflect the different approaches required 

to provide holistic care to those with ADHD. 

The objectives of the grant are to support the AADHDPA in:  

▪ bringing together, and consulting with, members of the health sector to provide impartial 

information and advice to the Commonwealth on ADHD diagnosis, treatment and 

management; 

▪ gathering high quality data on ADHD in Australia and its inter-relationships with other 

mental health problems (e.g. substance abuse) and its societal impact; 

▪ advising the Commonwealth on international policy and best practice on ADHD; 

▪ preparing guidance materials that promote and support standardised evidence-based 

approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD for health professionals; 

and 

▪ disseminating educational materials to inform Government, clinicians, carers and 

educators of best practice in the care of children and adolescents with ADHD. 

The grant contributes to the achievement of Outcome 2, Health Access and Support 

Services.  

The expected outcomes of the grant activity are to formalise agreed best practice for the 

diagnosis and treatment of ADHD nationally, and to identify key research and public policy 

priorities. 

The grant will be undertaken in accordance with the Commonwealth Grants Rules and 

Guidelines (CGRGs) 
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February 2018 

2. Grant selection process 

This grant opportunity has been established as a one-off grant. It will support a broad range 

of health professionals to share information and agree on an evidence based holistic 

approach towards the diagnosis and treatment of ADHD at a national level.  

3. Eligibility 

If the potential grant recipient does not satisfy the eligibility criteria, it will not be considered. 

To be eligible to receive a grant the potential grant recipient must: 

• be a legal entity, able to enter into a legally binding agreement 

• have an Australian Business Number 

• be registered for the purposes of GST 

• be a permanent resident of Australia 

• have an Australian bank account 

3.1 Who is eligible to apply for a grant? 

AADHDPA is invited to apply for this grant opportunity as they have been assessed to have: 

• capability to deliver the project activities in the project location 

• existing infrastructure and relationships to support the project activities 

• knowledge of and capability to deliver to the project objectives and outcomes. 

AADHDPA is an established professional body that includes professionals from diverse 

backgrounds. They work together to provide a unified professional perspective on the 

causes, diagnosis, management and treatment of ADHD.  

Funding will be provided as a one-off ad hoc process and there is no guarantee of continued 

funding once the program has been completed. If any decision were made in the future to 

consider expanding a similar project for a broader rollout, broader-based and competitive 

funding processes would be considered.  

3.2 Eligible grant activities 

The grant can be used for the following grant activities: 

• Reviewing evidence around diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD  

• Developing materials in consultation with stakeholders 

• Conducting consultations and focus groups  

• Website and IT support to engage with the ADHD community and to collect data via 
surveys to inform guideline development 

• Secretariat support  
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February 2018 

Costs that the grant can be used for are: 

• Wages for scientific staff and secretariat support 

• Consultation costs 

• Communication materials 

• General office needs  
 

4. The assessment criteria 

The proposal is required to provide sufficient information to allow the following assessment 

criteria to be evaluated: 

Criterion 1: Demonstrate how the activities in your organisation’s proposal will align with the 

one-off grant objectives. 

Criterion 2: Demonstrate your organisation’s capacity to deliver the proposed activities.  

Criterion 3: Demonstrate how your proposed budget will provide value for money in achieving 

the one-off grant objectives.  

5. Grant assessment and decision making 

The application will be assessed by the Child and Youth Mental Health Section, Mental 

Health for Children and Adolescents, and Suicide Prevention Branch. The department may 

seek information from any other source, including from within the Commonwealth, whether or 

not the individuals or organisations contacted are nominated as referees. 

The assessment of application will consider: 

• whether the proposal represents value with money 

• alignment with program objectives 

• organisational capacity and performance  

6. Who will approve the grant? 

Following assessment, the assessment committee will make recommendations to the 

decision maker. For the purposes of this grant, the Decision Maker unless otherwise 

specified will be the Assistant Secretary, Mental Health for Children and Adolescents, and 

Suicide Prevention Branch. The Decision Maker will make the final decision to approve a 

grant. 

The Decision Maker’s decision is final in all matters, including: 

▪ the approval of the grant 

▪ the grant amount to be awarded 

▪ the terms and conditions of the grant. 
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The Decision Maker’s must not approve funding if they reasonably consider the program 

funding available across financial years will not accommodate the funding offer, and/or if the 

application does not represent value with money. 

There is no appeal mechanism for decisions to approve or not approve a grant. 

7. Notification of application outcomes 

The applicant will be advised of the outcome in writing, following a decision by the Assistant 

Secretary, Mental Health for Children and Adolescents and Suicide Prevention Branch. If the 

applicant is successful, the advice will contain details of any specific conditions attached to 

the grant. 

7.1 The grant agreement 

Successful applicants must enter into a legally binding grant agreement with the 

Commonwealth represented by the department. The department will use the Commonwealth 

Standard Grant Agreement. Standard terms and conditions for the grant agreement will apply 

and cannot be changed. A schedule may be used to outline the specific grant requirements.  

Any additional conditions attached to the grant will be identified in the grant offer or during 

the grant agreement negotiations. 

The successful applicant will be required to provide income and expenditure reports.  

The department will negotiate agreements with successful applicants by [insert date]. If 

there are unreasonable delays in finalising a grant agreement, the grant offer may be 

withdrawn and the grant may be awarded to a different applicant. 

Financial commitments should not be made until a grant agreement has been executed by 

the Commonwealth. 

8. Announcement of grants 
Grants awarded will be listed on the GrantConnect website 21 days after the date of effect as 

required by Section 5.3 of the CGRGs. 

9. Grant acquittal and reporting 

The grantee must submit reports in line with the timeframes in the grant agreement. Sample 

templates will be provided for these reports in the grant agreement. Reports will include:  

• progress against agreed project milestones 

• contributions of participants directly related to the project 

• eligible expenditure of grant monies. 

The grantee will also be responsible for: 
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-----Original Message-----
From: Mark Bellgrove [mailto:mark.bellgrove@monash.edu] 
Sent: Monday, 5 November 2018 7:41 PM
To: STODDART, Chloe
Cc: MOREHEAD, Alison; 
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Subject: Re: Re funding for the Australian Adhd Professionals Association
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Dear Chloe,
I think the second option you propose sounds fine and I have discussed with 

Is there anything further I need to do??
Best wishes
Mark
Please feel free to call if you need to discuss

On 4 Nov 2018, at 3:54 pm, STODDART, Chloe <Chloe.Stoddart@health.gov.au> wrote:
Hi Mark,
I'm just following up on your email to Alison.
We are happy to support the development of guidance material. However, I
understand that the process for developing National Clinical Guidelines
endorsed by NHMRC is quite rigorous, takes a significant period of time and
can be costly. Part of the process includes the evaluation of the
implementation and impact of the guidelines as well as regular revision.
Given funding from the Department is one-off and will only be up until June
2021, it would be good to get an understanding of how AADPA intends to
undertake the NHMRC process, including evaluation and revision? The
concern is that the currently identified timeframes and budget may not be
feasible.
The other option is that we could fund the development of guidance material
that is not NHMRC endorsed. AADPA may then choose to get this material
endorsed at a later date. Not sure your thoughts on this?
I know you are currently in the USA, but I'm happy to set up a time to talk if
that helps.
Regards,
Chloe
_______________________________
Chloe Stoddart
A/g Assistant Secretary
Mental Health and Other Initiatives
Primary Care and Mental Health Division | Department of Health
T: (02) 6289 1315
E: chloe.stoddart@health.gov.au
-----Original Message-----
From: Mark Bellgrove [mailto:mark.bellgrove@monash.edu]
Sent: Friday, 2 November 2018 2:00 AM
To: MOREHEAD, Alison
Cc: STODDART, Chloe
Subject: Re: Re funding for the Australian Adhd Professionals
Association [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Dear Alison,
Many thanks for this reply. Is there any issue around guideline development
from your perspective? We are keen to be involved in this space as it’s much
needed but we were also told initially that funding wasn’t tied to this
explicitly.
If you need to speak to me at all about this I can make myself
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available from the USA. This is a high priority for me, Thanks so much
Mark Bellgrove

On 31 Oct 2018, at 11:50 pm, MOREHEAD, Alison
<Alison.Morehead@health.gov.au> wrote:
Hi Mark,
Thank you for getting in touch in relation to your proposal. I want
to assure you that it is still being progressed.
I understand that the team has been negotiating with you and
sought information about the deliverables and performance
indicators and that you provided this information at the end of
September. It was on review of this information that it became
clear that the guidance material would include developing
National Clinical Guidelines, endorsed by NHMRC. We are
currently considering our position on this. We are hoping to
resolve our position shortly and then finalise the negotiations with
you.

Alison
Dr Alison Morehead
First Assistant Secretary
Primary Care and Mental Health Division Department of Health
02 6289 1405
0412 568 536
-----Original Message-----
From: Mark Bellgrove [mailto:mark.bellgrove@monash.edu]
Sent: Wednesday, 31 October 2018 3:50 PM
To: MOREHEAD, Alison
Cc: 
Subject: Re funding for the Australian Adhd Professionals
Association
[SEC=No Protective Marking]
Dear Alison,

 has suggested that I contact you to enquire
whether it is possible to get a timeframe for the release of the
Health Department funding for our Association, as approved by
the Minister.
We have supplied all relevant information requested but are very
keen to get on with this important work, particularly given that
some time frames were agree upon in initial documentation.
I would be grateful if there is any assistance you can offer in
expediting the approval of this funding so that we may commence
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our
work with the Australian Adhd community
Sincerely
Mark A Bellgrove
_____________________________________________________________________
_
"Important: This transmission is intended only for the use of the
addressee and may contain confidential or legally privileged
information. If you are not the intended recipient, you are notified
that any use or dissemination of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you receive this transmission in error please notify
the author immediately and delete all copies of this transmission."

______________________________________________________________________
"Important: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and
may contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are notified that any use or dissemination of this
communication is strictly prohibited. If you receive this transmission in error
please notify the author immediately and delete all copies of this
transmission."

______________________________________________________________________
"Important: This transmission is intended only for the use of the addressee and may
contain confidential or legally privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient,
you are notified that any use or dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited.
If you receive this transmission in error please notify the author immediately and delete all
copies of this transmission."

I acknowledge the Traditional Owners and Custodians of the lands on which I live and work and pay my respect to Elders past, present and future.
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From:
Sent: Friday, 22 June 2018 9:25 AM
To:
Cc:
Subject: FW: AADPA proposal [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: AADPA Proposal.docx

Kind regards 

 

  
A/g Director, Child and Youth Mental Health Section 
Primary Care and Mental Health Division 
Australian Government Department of Health 
  |  @health.gov.au 

From: GLEESON, Emma  
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 9:07 PM 
To:  
Subject: FW: AADPA proposal [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

For action, when you have capacity. Emma 

Sent with BlackBerry Work 
(www.blackberry.com) 

From: EDWARDS, Caroline <Caroline.Edwards@health.gov.au> 
Date: Wednesday, 20 Jun 2018, 8:41 pm 
To:  @health.gov.au> 
Cc: @health.gov.au>, MOREHEAD, Alison <Alison.Morehead@health.gov.au>, GLEESON, 
Emma <Emma.Gleeson@health.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: AADPA proposal [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 

Thanks  

Looks like a proposal we can helpfully take forward. Alison / Emma – over to you. Let me know if we need to discuss 

C 

Caroline Edwards 
Deputy Secretary 
Health Systems Policy and Primary Care 
Department of Health 
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2

From:   
Sent: Wednesday, 20 June 2018 8:20 PM 
To: EDWARDS, Caroline 
Cc:  
Subject: AADPA proposal [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] 
 
Dear Caroline, 
 
The revised proposal is attached. Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Kind regards, 

 
 
--- 

 
Adviser 
Office of the Hon Greg Hunt MP 
Minister for Health | Federal Member for Flinders 
 

 Parliament House, Canberra, ACT, 2600 
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Funding for the Australian Attention Deficit Hyperactivity 
Disorder (ADHD) Professionals Association (AADPA) 

Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder 
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Request for Funding 
The AADP is requesting $1.5 million in funding over three years from the 
Commonwealth to enable it to continue to: 

• bring together, and consult with, members of the health sector – including
clinicians, researchers, consumers and carers to provide impartial
information and advice to the Commonwealth

• gather high quality data on ADHD in Australia and its inter-relationships with
other mental health problems (e.g., substance abuse) and its societal impact

• advise the Commonwealth on international policy and best practice

• prepare guidance materials that promote and support standardised
evidence-based approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of
ADHD for health professionals

• disseminate educational materials to inform Government, clinicians, carers
and educators of best practice in the care of children and adolescents with
ADHD.
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From: @health.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 25 October 2019 2:29 PM 
To: dss.gov.au> 
Cc: @dss.gov.au>; @health.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: ADHD - Jan - June 19 report [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi  
 
Thank you for your email and our quick chat on the phone. As discussed, I support your proposed approach of 
approving the report with AADPA and indicating that we will follow up separately about the NHMRC endorsement 
matter, given that I cannot provide timeframe for when we could get back to you on this. 
 
Kind regards, 

 
 

 
 
Assistant Director – Child & Youth Mental Health Section 

 
Mental Health Division |  Health Systems Policy & Primary Care Group  
Mental Health Services & Evidence Branch  
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2

Australian Government Department of Health 
  

 
PO Box 9848, Canberra ACT 2601, Australia 
Note my working hours are 9am - 3pm Monday to Friday 
 
The Department of Health acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and 
community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to elders both past and present.  

 
 
 

From: @dss.gov.au>  
Sent: Friday, 25 October 2019 10:06 AM 
To: @health.gov.au> 
Cc: @dss.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: ADHD - Jan - June 19 report [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Hi  
 
Hope you are well.  
 
I’m following up on  email below re AAPDA, as I don’t believe we’ve received a response yet. 
 
We are planning to approve the Jan – June 2019 report (attached), and note in the approval email back to AAPDA 
that you will separately follow up the NHMRC endorsement matter with them. While the report includes 
information about developing National Clinical Guidelines for ADHS “in partnership with the NHMRC and all relevant 
agencies/bodies/groups in Australia,” there is no specific reference to NHMRC endorsement.  
 
Just wanted to confirm you don’t have any concerns with this approach?  
 
Thanks . Happy to discuss.  
 

 
 
 

 
Program Coordinator 
Community Grants Hub 
Victorian Office 
Department of Social Services 

  

communitygrants.gov.au 
 
The Department of Social Services acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their continuing 
connection to land, water and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to Elders both past and 
present.             

 
 
 

FOI 3793 DOCUMENT 9 Page 2 of 19

s 22

s 22

s 22
s 22

s 22

s 22

s 22

s 22

s 22

s 22

s 22

THIS D
OCUMENT H

AS BEEN R
ELE

ASED U
NDER 

THE FREEDOM O
F IN

FORMATIO
N ACT 19

82
 

BY THE D
EPARTMENT O

F H
EALT

H



3

From:   
Sent: Thursday, 17 October 2019 12:06 PM 
To: @health.gov.au> 
Subject: FW: New Grant Manager - ADHD [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
 
Good Afternoon  
 
Below and attached are the responses I have received from AADPA regarding our query on them producing an ADHD 
Guideline for NHMRC endorsement. The response is on page 2 & 3 of the PDF document. I have also attached  
email that Mark has mentioned of. 
 
Further to that he phoned me earlier this week to discuss my queries and advised NHMRC endorsement was not in 
the FA. I then referred to the email on 5/11/18 where he agreed with Chloe Stoddart’s suggestion to not to carry out 
the NHMRC endorsed Guideline. He was then able to recall about the issue. During the conversation he also 
mentioned that he spoke with the NHMRC and the minister and they were happy for him to carry it out.  
 
Many Thanks 

  
Community Grants Hub 

  

The Department of Social Services acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia, and their continuing 
connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to elders both past and 
present.             
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On 10 Oct 2019, at 2:06 pm, @dss.gov.au> wrote: 

Good Morning Mark 
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6

  

         I also note from the performance report that AADPA has held a stakeholder meeting on 30 
June 2019 for the development of national clinical guidelines for ADHD in Australia. One of the 
objectives of the grant is to prepare guidance materials that is not NHMRC endorsed to promote 
and support standardised evidence-based approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of 
ADHD for health professionals. Please confirm the stakeholder meeting held on 30 June and the 
subsequent ones planned or any of the other activities undertaken for the grant are not to produce 
evidence-based Australian National Guidelines for the diagnosis, treatment, interventions and 
management of ADHD for NHMRC endorsement. 
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16 October 2019 

 
Community Grants Hub 
Department of Social Services 
E: @dss.gov.au 
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 I also note from the performance report that AADPA has held a stakeholder meeting on 30 June
2019 for the development of national clinical guidelines for ADHD in Australia. One of the objectives
of the grant is to prepare guidance materials that is not NHMRC endorsed to promote and support
standardised evidence-based approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD for
health professionals. Please confirm the stakeholder meeting held on 30 June and the subsequent
ones planned or any of the other activities undertaken for the grant are not to produce evidence-
based Australian National Guidelines for the diagnosis, treatment, interventions and management
of ADHD for NHMRC endorsement.

Thank you for querying this and for bringing to my attention previous email correspondence from Chloe 

Stoddart.  The primary concern raised by Ms Stoddart was whether we could accomplish an NHMRC 

endorsed national clinical guidelines within the period and budget of our grant (ending June 2021). 

I can confirm that this is possible for a number of reasons.  First, we are conducting an ‘update’ to a 

clinical guideline for ADHD that was published by NICE in 2018.  Thus, a large amount of work has 

already been done. We are updating this based on current data and including additional questions of 

relevance for the Australian context.  Our timeline for completion of this project is April 2021.  At this 

time, the guideline will be submitted to the NHMRC council for consideration of approval.  I note that 

even if we were to prepare a non-NHMRC guideline, these timeframes and budget would not differ; we 

would still need to follow best practices including obtaining broad stakeholder engagement; 

performing state-of-the-art evidence synthesis; making clinical recommendations based on evidence; 

writing the guideline; and submitting this to public consultation.  The NHMRC process adds no 

additional burden in terms of time or cost. 

So, to reiterate, the guideline can be prepared within budget and within the timeframe of the grant and 

thus I respectfully request that this activity be allowed to continue. We have already achieved much, 

have broad engagement from the national ADHD professional and consumer community and are 

making great progress.  A national clinical guideline for ADHD is much desired by the Australian 

community and with this grant we are able to deliver this important work. 

I note that the following was listed as point 4 in the strategic vision of our approved 2018-2019 Activity 

Work Plan that we received back from  on 13th May 2019.  Our current activity aligns with 

what we stipulated: 

“convene workshops of key opinion leaders including international experts and local stakeholders 

(NHMRC, professional and consumer) to scope the re-development of national clinical guidelines 

for ADHD;” 
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It is also listed as the last activity in the approved ‘Attachment A – ADHD Activity and Timeframes’ 

document sent to us by :  “Develop the national clinical guidelines for ADHD”. 

Sincerely, 

Mark A. Bellgrove 
AADPA President 
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Commonwealth 
Standard Grant Agreement 

between  
the Commonwealth represented by 

Department of Health 

and 

Australian ADHD Professionals 
Association Ltd 
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Grant Details 

 

 

A. Purpose of the Grant  

ADHD is a childhood-onset condition and includes symptoms of hyperactivity, impulsivity and inattention. 

These symptoms are chronic and in approximately 30-60 per cent of cases, persist into adulthood. ADHD 

has a high burden of illness. It is associated with lowered academic functioning, increased risk for drug 

abuse and can have devastating consequences for family and peer relations. Economically, it is associated 

with increased costs, for example, treatment and educational support in school-aged children, as well as 

economic loss due to disability, substance abuse, criminality and increased rates of unemployment. 

To address these issues, the Department will be providing funding of $1.5 million over four years to the 

Australian Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder Professionals Association (AADPA) to deliver the 

Support for People Impacted by ADHD Program (the Program). AADPA, a leading professional body for 

ADHD in Australia, brings together an interdisciplinary team of health professionals, including, but not 

limited to academics, psychiatrists, speech therapists and specialists, to reflect the different approaches 

required to provide holistic care to those with ADHD. 
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Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) Support - 4-A168GI8 

B. Grant Activity 

The objectives of the grant are to support the AADPA in:  

 bringing together, and consulting with, members of the health sector to provide impartial information 
and advice to the Commonwealth on ADHD diagnosis, treatment and management; 

 gathering high quality data on ADHD in Australia and its inter-relationships with other mental health 
problems (e.g. substance abuse) and its societal impact; 

 advising the Commonwealth on international policy and best practice on ADHD; 

 preparing guidance materials that promote and support standardised evidence-based approaches 
to diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD for health professionals; and 

 disseminating educational materials to inform Government, clinicians, carers and educators of best 
practice in the care of children and adolescents with ADHD. 
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D. Payment of the Grant  

The total amount of the Grant is $1,500,000.00 (GST exclusive). 

GST is payable on the Grant. 

A break down by Financial Year is below: 

Financial Year Amount * (excl. GST) 

2018-2019 $500,000.00 

2019-2020 $500,000.00 

2020-2021 $500,000.00 

2021-2022 $0.00 
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Activity Work Plan (2019-2020): 

Australian ADHD Professionals Association Ltd 

 
The Activity Work Plan template has the following parts: 

When submitting this Activity Work Plan 2018-2021 to the Department of Health, the organisation must 
ensure that all internal clearances have been obtained and has been endorsed by the CEO. 

The Activity Work Plan must be lodged to  
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Overview 
The objectives of the grant are to support the AADPA in: 

 bringing together, and consulting with, members of the health sector to provide impartial 
information and advice to the Commonwealth on ADHD diagnosis, treatment and management;  

 gathering high quality data on ADHD in Australia and its inter-relationships with other mental 
health problems (e.g. substance abuse) and its societal impact;  

 advising the Commonwealth on international policy and best practice on ADHD;  

 preparing guidance materials that promote and support standardised evidence-based 
approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD for health professionals; and  

 disseminating educational materials to inform Government, clinicians, carers and educators of 
best practice in the care of children and adolescents with ADHD.  

 

The expected outcomes of the grant activity are to formalise agreed best practice for the diagnosis 
and treatment of ADHD nationally, and to identify key research and public policy priorities.  

 

1. (a) Strategic Vision  

During this activity period, the Australian ADHD Professionals Association (ADDPA) will: 

(i) Develop its website to enhance our ability to deliver information to clinicians treating 

ADHD and to consumers, and develop evidence-based fact sheets to provide 

information to clinicians and consumers;  

(ii) continue the development of a series of systematic reviews that will identify barriers to 

care in Australia and areas of unmet need;  

(iii) implement high quality surveys to establish the research priorities of ADHD consumers, 

consumer needs, public perceptions and awareness of ADHD; 

(iv) convene workshops of key opinion leaders including international experts and local 

stakeholders (NHMRC, professional and consumer) to scope the re-development of 

national clinical guidelines for ADHD; 

(v) develop adult ADHD diagnosis and treatment training modules; 

(vi) commission the development of an AADPA App to monitor treatment response which 

will enhance clinical practice; and 

(vii) conduct an audit of current clinical diagnostic and treatment practices within Australia.  
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Full data on the economic cost of ADHD is provided in the attached report. 
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We were unable to conduct the 2nd Stakeholder meeting within the 

reporting period due to time restrictions on attendees.  Nevertheless, we 

are very comfortable with progress made. 

● Reflect on positive outcomes in line with grant aims; and 

The conduct of the 1st Stakeholder meeting in preparation for the 

development of national clinical guidelines for ADHD in Australia, was a 

watershed moment. For the first time we brought together in the one 

room a range of interest groups and got 100% buy-in from all parties, 

giving AADPA the mandate to push ahead and develop the Guidelines with 

the cooperation and good will of all parties. 

● Reference data noting any trends, exceptions or impacts. 

NIL 
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Activity Work Plan (2021-2022): 

Australian ADHD Professionals Association Ltd 

 
The Activity Work Plan template has the following parts: 

 

 

When submitting this Activity Work Plan 2021-2022 to the Department of Health, the organisation must 
ensure that all internal clearances have been obtained and has been endorsed by the CEO. 

The Activity Work Plan must be lodged by 15 June 2021. 
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Overview 
The objectives of the grant are to support the AADPA in: 

• bringing together, and consulting with, members of the health sector to provide impartial 
information and advice to the Commonwealth on ADHD diagnosis, treatment and management;  

• gathering high quality data on ADHD in Australia and its inter-relationships with other mental 
health problems and its societal impact;  

• advising the Commonwealth on international policy and best practice on ADHD;  

• preparing guidance materials that promote and support standardised evidence-based 
approaches to diagnosis, treatment and management of ADHD for health professionals; and  

• disseminating educational materials to inform Government, clinicians, carers and educators of 
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

During this activity period, the Australian ADHD Professionals Association (AADPA) will: 

(i) Develop its website to enhance our ability to deliver information to clinicians treating 

ADHD and to consumers, and develop mental health literacy information for clinicians 

and consumers, including advice for COVID-19;  

(ii) continue the development of a series of systematic reviews that will identify barriers to 

care in Australia and areas of unmet need;  

(iii) implement high quality surveys to establish the research priorities of ADHD consumers, 

consumer needs, public perceptions and awareness of ADHD, and impact of COVID-19 

on the mental health of individuals with ADHD; 

(iv) continue the formulation and implementation of national clinical guidelines for ADHD 

with a view to endorsement by the NHMRC and professional groups (RACP; RACGP, 

RANZCP; APS; NBPSA etc); 

(v) Continue to refine the development and implementation of the AADPA App developed 

in the previous reporting period which is designed to monitor treatment response and 
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which will enhance clinical practice.  Some ongoing modifications may be required 

depending on clinician feedback 
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